#### PUBLIC NOTICE

## REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE DISPOSAL INVITATION FOR BID (IFB) #2025-026

**Project Description**: The Regional Transit Authority of New Orleans seeking qualified vendors to provide Non-Hazardous Waste Disposal for various RTA locations per specifications in IFB 2025-026.

**How to obtain a copy of the IFB:** Specifications and further information concerning the IFB may be obtained July 24, 2025, from the RTA's Procureware website at <a href="https://norta.procureware.com/home">https://norta.procureware.com/home</a>. You will be required to first register on this website. The IFB can also be obtained at Regional Transit Authority's website at <a href="http://www.norta.com">http://www.norta.com</a>

**Clarification Deadline:** Any questions or further information concerning this IFB must be submitted through <a href="https://norta.procureware.com/home">https://norta.procureware.com/home</a> by 1:00PM on August 13, 2025. Only written questions submitted through Procureware site shall be considered official. All answers to questions shall be by formal addenda posted to the website under IFB 2025-026.

**Responding to IFB:** Bids shall be submitted through the RTA's Procureware website on or before 1:00 P.M., Friday, August 22, 2025.

**A Bid Opening** will be held in the RTA Board Room located at 2817 Canal Street, New Orleans, LA 70119, on Friday, August 10, 2025, at 1:00 PM. Any questions or further information concerning the IFB may be submitted Via <a href="https://norta.procureware.com/home">https://norta.procureware.com/home</a>, beginning on july 24, 2025.

RTA in accordance with 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 26 has an obligation to ensure nondiscrimination of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) and to comply with all federal, state and local regulations relative to utilization of DBEs on publicly funded projects. The RTA is committed to utilization of DBEs on all federally funded projects toward attainment of the agency's established overall goal of 32%. **No DBE goal has been established for this project as there are no subcontracting opportunities on this project.** 

Notice to all offerors is hereby provided that in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws the RTA will ensure that DBEs are afforded full opportunity to submit offers and responses to this solicitation and to participate in any contract consummated pursuant to this advertisement. Additionally, no offeror will be discriminated against on the basis of age, sex, race, color, religion, national origin, ethnicity or disability. For additional information contact the RTA's Small Business Office at 504-827-8301.

The RTA reserves the right to accept or reject any and all proposals submitted.

Lona Hankins Chief Executive Officer Regional Transit Authority

## INVITATION FOR BIDS FROM REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

SUBJECT: NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE DISPOSAL

DATE: JULY 24, 2025

INVITATION

FOR BIDS NO. <u>2025-026</u>

BID OPENING: FRIDAY, AUGUST 22, 2025, 1:00 P.M.

The Regional Transit Authority invites bids for supplies and/or services set forth above in accordance with the specifications enclosed herewith.

Bids MUST be received at the RTA Office by the date and time set for bid opening.

Enclosures MUST include ("X" indicates item enclosed)

<u>X</u> Instruction to Bidders

\_X\_ General Provisions

X Federal Requirements

<u>X</u> Technical Specifications

X\_ Bid Form

## **BIDDER SUBMISSION CHECKLIST**

The following items must be submitted in order to be considered responsive and are due on the bid submittal date:

Unit Price Form (Attachment I)

Non-Collusion Affidavit

Participant Information Form

Certificates of Insurance

## **INSTRUCTIONS FOR OBTAINING FORMS**

Go to RTA's official web site at:

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority - Procurements and Contracts (norta.com)

Click on "Vendor Form Library"

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	PAGE NUMBER
1.1	Scope	1
1.2	Contract Documentation	1
1.3	Bid Requirements	1
1.4	Pricing	1
1.5	Brand Names	1
1.6	Qualifications For Award	2
1.7	Bidder Review Procedures	2
1.8	Bid Preparation	4
1.9	Bid Postponement and Amendment	4
1.10	Cancellation of the Invitation For Bids	4
1.11	Public Bid Opening	4
1.12	Bid Rejection	4
1.13	Single Bid Response	5
1.14	Bid Withdrawal	5
1.15	Award Procedure	5
1.16	Utilization of Minority and Women Owned Banks	5
1.17	Addenda	5
II.	RTA'S GENERAL PROVISIONS	
2.1	Written Change Orders/Amendments	6
2.2	Change Order/Amendment Procedure	6
2.3	Omissions	6
2.4	Priority	6
2.5	Communications	6
2.6	Interests of Members of, or Delegates to Congress	6
2.7	Conflict of Interest	7
2.8	Equal Employment Opportunity	7
2.9	Privacy Requirements	7
2.10	Indemnification	8
2.11	Performance	8
2.12	Status of Contractor and Its Employees	8
2.13	Insurances and Licenses	8
2.14	Subcontractors	9
2.15	Assumption of Risk of Loss	9
2.16	Acceptance	9
2.17	Quality Inspection	9
2.18	Correction by Contractor	9
2.19	Unavoidable Delays	9
2.20	Notification of Delay	10
2.21	Request for Extension	10
2.22	Access Requirements for Individuals with Disabilities	10

2.23	Application of Federal, State and Local Laws and Regulations	11
2.24	Contract Period	11
2.25	No Obligation by the Federal Government	11
2.26	Federal Changes	11
2.27	Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms	12
2.28	Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications	12
2.29	Geographic Restrictions	12
2.30	Prompt Payment	12
2.31	Confidentiality	13
2.32	Disputes	13
2.33	Ownership of Documents	14
2.34	State and Local Law Disclaimer	14
2.35	Participant Information	14
2.36	Non-Collusion Affidavit	14
2.37	Regional Transit Authority General Provisions	14
2.38	Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE)	14

**ATTACHMENTS** UNIT PRICE FORM – IFB 2025-026

#### I INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

#### 1.1 SCOPE

The Regional Transit Authority of New Orleans is seeking qualified vendors to provide Non-Hazardous Waste Disposal services at its three (3) locations listed below.

- 2817 Canal Street, New Orleans, LA, 70119
- 3900/3901 Desire Parkway, New Orleans, LA, 70126
- 8201 Willow Street, New Orleans, LA, 70118

The contract awarded pursuant to this Invitation for Bids shall be a fixed price contract for a total of four (4) years. The contract price shall include all labor, materials, supplies, services, tools, equipment, etc. required to safely and properly dispose of waste. In addition, crews may occasionally require portable restrooms. Pricing for this equipment shall be included in the bid response.

## 1.2 CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION

Any contract resulting from this solicitation shall contain the terms and conditions included in this Invitation for Bids and any addenda issued pursuant hereto.

## 1.3 BID REQUIREMENTS (ELECTRONIC BID SUBMITTAL)

Electronic bids will be uploaded through our electronic bidding system at <a href="https://norta.procureware.com/home">https://norta.procureware.com/home</a>. Until 2:00 PM on the date established as the bid receipt deadline. Bids received after the date and time shall be considered late. All necessary and appropriate resources, including but not limited to labor, equipment, and materials, supplies, etc. shall be furnished in strict accordance with the project schedule and terms and conditions contained in this Invitation for Bids.

## 1.4 PRICING

The bidder shall complete and execute the Louisiana Uniform Public Work Bid Form (Attachment II). The bidder shall quote prices in the unit of measure specified and shall include all applicable taxes in the bid price. The RTA is exempt from all taxes; however, only Louisiana State Sales Tax Exemption for materials incorporated into the final product will be transferable to the Contractor. The Contractor shall pay all other sales, use, and other similar taxes that are enacted as of the Contract execution or subsequently revised or added. The Regional Transit Authority will pay no sales taxes or for any increase in sales taxes, unless such increase in sales tax is due to a change in the interpretation of the Louisiana Tax Code by the Louisiana State Tax Commission and such increase in sales tax is the subject of an authorized change order. Whenever there is a discrepancy between a unit price and any extension, the unit price shall govern. Bidders are hereby notified that discount terms shall not be used in the determination of award of this contract.

## 1.5 BRAND NAMES

Wherever in the specifications the name of a certain brand, make, manufacturer, or definite specification is utilized, these specifications are used only to denote the quality standard of product, style type, and character of product desired and do not restrict bidders to the specific

brand, make, manufacturer or specification named. Equivalent products, which have been designated "approved equals" by RTA or its agents, shall be acceptable.

## 1.6 QUALIFICATIONS FOR AWARD

Award of this contract shall be made to the lowest responsible bidder, provided the bid is responsive in all respects to the terms and conditions of the contract, and the requirements, conditions, specifications as provided in this Invitation for Bids. To be responsible the Contractor shall be a person, firm, or corporation that:

Has in operation, or has the capability to have in operation, or has access to a manufacturing plant adequate to ensure delivery of all services, goods and supplies within the time specified under this contract.

Has adequate engineering and service personnel, or has the capability to obtain such personnel, to satisfy any engineering or service problems that may arise during the contract period.

Has adequate construction management and construction craft personnel, or has the capability to obtain such personnel, to satisfy any construction or service problems that may arise during the contract period.

Has the necessary facilities and financial resources, or has the capability to obtain such facilities and financial resources, to complete the contract in a satisfactory manner within the required time.

The RTA shall have the right to conduct a pre-award survey of each bidder and to conduct a cost/price analysis and/or audit to determine if the prices bid are fair and reasonable.

## 1.7 BIDDER REVIEW PROCEDURES

FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS PARAGRAPH, SUBMISSION DEADLINES SHALL BE 1:00 P.M. (CENTRAL TIME).

## a. Request for Modification or Clarification

This section establishes procedures for bidders to seek review of this Invitation for Bids and any addenda. A bidder may discuss this Invitation for Bids and any addenda with the RTA. Such discussions do not, however, relieve bidders from the responsibility of submitting written, documented requests. Bidders may submit to the RTA requests for interpretations, clarifications or modifications concerning any term, condition and/or specification included in this Invitation for Bids and/or in any addendum hereto. Any such request, questions, etc. must be received by the RTA, in writing. RTA will entertain questions etc. submitted at the pre-bid conference on the attached pre-bid conference form, or requests submitted in writing not less than seven (7) calendar days before the date of scheduled bid opening. All requests must be accompanied by all relevant information supporting the request for modification, interpretation, clarification or addendum of this solicitation. All requests for clarification and/or modification should be submitted through the RTA Procurement E-Bid website at <a href="https://norta.procureware.com/home">https://norta.procureware.com/home</a>.

RTA will issue a written determination relative to each request made pursuant to this procedure. The written determination must be posted for all bidders to view through the

E-Bid website or otherwise furnished to all bidders at least three (3) calendar days (72 hours) before the date scheduled as the bid opening date.

## b. Protest Procedures

The following is an explanation of the RTA protest procedures which must be followed completely before all administrative remedies are exhausted.

Any person who is aggrieved in connection with the solicitation or award of a contract may protest to the Director of Procurement. Protests shall be submitted in writing specifically identifying the area of protest and containing any support data, test results, or other pertinent information substantiating the appeal. A protest with respect to a solicitation must be submitted in writing to the RTA at least five (5) calendar days prior to bid opening. A protest with regard to contract award shall be submitted, in writing, within seven (7) calendar days after award of the contract.

Prior to any action in court, the Director of Procurement shall have the authority to settle or resolve a protest from an aggrieved person concerning the solicitation or award of a contract.

If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement, the Director of Procurement or his designee shall within thirty (30) calendar days of protest issue a decision in writing. The decision shall:

- 1. State the reasons for the action taken; and
- 2. Inform the protestor of his/her right to administrative review.

A copy of this decision shall be mailed or otherwise furnished immediately to the protestant and any other party intervening. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless:

- 1. The decision is fraudulent; or
- 2. The person adversely affected by the decision has submitted a timely administrative appeal to the Chief Executive Officer.

In the event of a timely protest under these regulations, the RTA shall not proceed further with the solicitation or with the award of the contract unless the Director of Procurement makes a written determination that the award of the contract is necessary without delay to protect the substantial interests of the RTA.

The Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority to review and determine any appeal by an aggrieved person from a determination by the Director of Procurement or his designee.

The aggrieved person must file an appeal within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of a decision from the Director of Procurement.

On any appeal of the decision of the Director of Procurement, the Chief Executive Officer shall decide within thirty (30) calendar days whether the solicitation or award was made in accordance with the constitution, statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the solicitation. Any prior determination by the Director of Procurement or his designee shall not be final or conclusive.

A copy of the Chief Executive Officer decision shall be mailed or otherwise furnished immediately to the protestant or any other party intervening. The decision of the Chief Executive Officer shall be final and conclusive unless:

- 1. The decision is fraudulent; or
- 2. The person adversely affected by the decision has timely appealed to FTA after having exhausted the local protest procedures stated above.

The RTA reserves the right to designate any person(s) other than the Chief Executive Officer or the Director of Procurement to perform the duties provided for in this Paragraph.

Any appeal to FTA under these protest procedures will be made pursuant to FTA Circular 4220.1F, as amended.

## 1.8 BID PREPARATION

Each offer shall be made on the Invitation for Bids Form which shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope with the name and address of the bidder, the required contractor's licensing number, the advertised date and time of the bid opening, and the title of the bid marked on the outside. All blank spaces on the bid form must be filled in and no changes shall be made in the wording. Bidder's wishing to submit an electronic bid are directed to, Section I. Instruction to Bidder's, Paragraph 1.3 BID REQUIREMENTS (ELECTRONIC BID SUBMITTAL) of this IFB.

## 1.9 BID POSTPONEMENT AND AMENDMENT

The RTA reserves the right to amend the instructions, general conditions, special conditions, plans, scope of work, and specifications of this solicitation up to the time set for bid opening. Copies of such amendments shall be furnished to all prospective bidders.

## 1.10 CANCELLATION OF THE INVITATION FOR BIDS

The RTA reserves the right to cancel this Invitation for Bids in whole or in part upon written determination by the Director of Procurement that such cancellation is in the best interest of the RTA.

## 1.11 PUBLIC BID OPENING

Bids shall be publicly opened at the time specified herein. The content of all bids, including documents marked proprietary, shall be made public for the information of bidders and other interested parties. Bidders are required to submit all administrative submittals being requested by RTA. This does not supersede the requirement for a fully executed Invitation for Bid LA Public Bid Form, note Attachment II, and DBE Forms at the time of the Bid Opening.

## 1.12 BID REJECTION

The RTA reserves the right to waive any minor informality or irregularities in the bids received which do not prejudice other bidders. The RTA also reserves the right to reject any and all bids in whole or in part, and to award by items, parts of items, or by any group of items specified. Conditional bids, or those which take exception to the specifications, shall be considered non-responsive and shall be rejected.

## 1.13 SINGLE BID RESPONSE

If only one bid is received in response to this Invitation for Bids, a detailed cost proposal may be requested of the single bidder. A cost/price analysis and evaluation and/or audit may be performed in order to determine if the price is fair and reasonable. Award of a contract to the bidder submitting the only bid received in response to this Invitation for Bids may be subject to approval by the FTA.

## 1.14 BID WITHDRAWAL

Prior to the date and time set for bid opening, bids may be modified or withdrawn by the bidder's authorized representative in person, or by written or telegraphic notice. After the bid opening, bids may not be withdrawn for ninety (90) calendar days.

## 1.15 AWARD PROCEDURE

Within a reasonable time after the bid opening, the RTA will transmit the contract documents to the successful bidder. The contract documents will, at a minimum, consist of this Invitation for Bids, the Contractor's bid, RTA's standard contract provisions and provisions required by FTA.

## 1.16 UTILIZATION OF MINORITY AND WOMEN OWNED BANKS

All bidders are hereby encouraged to utilize the services of minority and women owned banks. The RTA's DBE Specialist is knowledgeable about such services. Any questions or concerns should be directed to the DBE Specialist at RTA's offices, 2817 Canal St., New Orleans, LA. (504) 827-8301.

## 1.17 ADDENDA

Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda to this invitation for Bids. Acknowledged receipt of each addendum must be clearly established and included with the offer. The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda.

Addendum No	, dated	
Addendum No	, dated	
Addendum No	, dated	
IFB NO. 2025-026		Company Name
		Company Representative

## II. GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 2.1 WRITTEN CHANGE ORDERS/AMENDMENTS

This contract may be changed/amended in any particular allowed by law upon the written mutual agreement of both parties.

## 2.2 CHANGE ORDER/AMENDMENT PROCEDURE

Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the written change order to modify the contract, the Contractor shall submit to the RTA a detailed price and schedule proposal for the work to be performed. This proposal shall be accepted or modified by negotiations between the Contractor and the RTA. At that time, a detailed modification shall be executed in writing by both parties. In the event that federal funds are used in this procurement, the FTA may reserve the right to concur in any change order or any dispute arising under such change order. Disagreements that cannot be resolved by negotiation shall be resolved in accordance with the contract disputes clauses. Regardless of any disputes, the Contractor shall proceed with the work ordered, if the RTA has obtained the concurrence of FTA, should such concurrence be required. Regardless of any other requirement herein, RTA shall negotiate profit as a separate element of cost for any change order or amendment to any contract awarded pursuant to this solicitation.

## 2.3 OMISSIONS

Notwithstanding the provision of drawings, technical specifications or other data by the RTA, the Contractor shall supply all resources and details required to make the supplies complete and ready for utilization even though such details may not be specifically mentioned in the drawings and specifications.

## 2.4 PRIORITY

In the event of any conflicts between the description of the supplies and/or services in the Technical Specifications and drawings and other parts of this Request For Proposals, the Technical Specifications and drawings shall govern.

## 2.5 COMMUNICATIONS

All official communications in connection with this contract shall be in writing. Respondents to this solicitation or persons acting on their behalf may not contact, between the release of the solicitation and award, any employee or officer of RTA or the Regional Transit Authority, including the Board of Commissioners, concerning any aspect of this solicitation, except in writing to the procurement officer or as provided in the solicitation documents. Violation of this provision may be grounds for rejecting a response.

## 2.6 INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF, OR DELEGATES TO CONGRESS

In accordance with 18 U.S.C. Subsection 431, no member of, or delegates to, the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to a share or part of this contract or to any benefit arising there from.

## 2.7 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Board Member, employee, officer or agent, or employee of such agent of the RTA shall participate in the selection or in the award or administration of a contract if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when:

- a. The Board Member, employee, officer or agent, or employee of such agent;
- b. Any member of his immediate family;
- c. His or her partner; or
- d. An organization that employs, or is about to employ any of the above, has a direct or indirect, present or future financial or other interest in the firm selected for award.

The RTA's Board Members, officers, employees or agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors or parties of sub agreements.

Each entity that enters into a contract with the RTA is required, prior to entering into such contract, to inform the RTA of any real or apparent organizational conflicts of interest. An organizational conflict of interest exists when the contractor is unable or potentially unable to provide objective assistance or advice to the RTA due to other activities, relationships, contracts, or circumstances; when the contractor has an unfair competitive advantage through obtaining access to nonpublic information during the performance of an earlier contract; and during the conduct of an earlier procurement, the contractor has established the ground rules for a future procurement by developing specifications, evaluation factors, or similar documents, in accordance with Chapter VI, 2.a.(4)(h) of FTA C 4220.1F.

## 2.8 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order No. 11246 as amended, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity" as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (41 C.F.R. Paragraph 60). In connection with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not discriminate against any employees or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, age, or national origin. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during their employment without regard to their race, religion, color, sex, age, or national origin. Such actions shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. Contractor further agrees to insert a similar provision in all subcontracts, except subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.

## 2.9 PRIVACY REQUIREMENTS

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the

Federal Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understand that the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract.

(2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

## 2.10 INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor covenants and agrees to fully defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless the RTA, and RTA, their directors, officers, employees, agents, and assigns from and against all liability, including strict liability, claims, demands, and causes of action brought by others against RTA, and/or RTA, and expenses, including but not limited to reasonable attorney's fees; and expense incurred in defense of RTA, and/or RTA arising out of, or in any way incidental to, or in connection with the work hereunder, and other activities by contractor; provided, however, that such indemnification shall apply only to the extent permitted by applicable law, and except and to the extent such liability, claim, demand or cause of action results from RTA's negligence.

## 2.11 PERFORMANCE

Contractor shall perform all work diligently, carefully and in a good and workmanlike manner and shall furnish all labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, material and supplies necessary therefore. Contractor shall obtain and maintain all permits and licenses required by public authorities in connection with performance of the work, and, if permitted to subcontract, shall be fully responsible for all work performed by subcontractors. Contractor shall conduct all operations in Contractor's own name and as an independent contractor, and not in the name of, or agent for RTA.

## 2.12 STATUS OF CONTRACTOR AND ITS EMPLOYEES

For all purposes specified under the terms of this Agreement the Contractor shall be considered an independent contractor as defined in R.S. 23:1021 (5), and as such, the RTA shall not be liable to the Contractor for benefits or coverage provided by the Workers' Compensation Law of the State of Louisiana (R.S. 23:1021 et seq.), and further, under the provisions of R.S. 23:1034, no person employed by the Contractor shall be considered an employee of the RTA for the purpose of Workers' Compensation coverage.

## 2.13 INSURANCES

The contractor shall, upon request by the RTA, submit a copy of their standard insurance certificates for this project. During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain the following types and amounts of insurance naming the Regional Transit Authority as an additional insured. The Contractor shall furnish to the RTA certificates showing types, amounts, class of operations covered, effective dates and dates of expiration of policies:

- A) Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by Louisiana Law;
- B) Vehicle Liability Insurance in the amount of \$1,000,000.00; and
- C) General Liability Insurance in the amount of \$1,000,000.

## 2.14 SUBCONTRACTORS

No portion of this contract may be, reassigned, transferred, or sublet without the written approval of the RTA. If allowed to subcontract, no subcontractor may be replaced without the written approval of the RTA.

## 2.15 ASSUMPTION OF RISK OF LOSS

Prior to acceptance, Contractor shall bear the risk of loss of the supplies, except that upon delivery, as defined in this Request For Proposals, the RTA will bear the risk of loss due to the negligence of the RTA.

## 2.16 ACCEPTANCE

Within 7 days after delivery, the RTA, its agents or assigns will conduct acceptance inspection. Acceptance shall be conditioned upon satisfactory results of such inspection, promptly communicated in writing to the Contractor, subject however, to revocation upon discovery of defects.

## 2.17 QUALITY INSPECTION

All goods and services installed and supplied shall be good quality and free from any defects, and shall at all times be subject to RTA's inspection; but neither RTA's inspection nor failure to inspect shall relieve Contractor of any obligation hereunder. If, in RTA's opinion, any goods or service (or component thereof) fails to conform to specifications or is otherwise defective, Contractor shall promptly replace or correct same at Contractor's sole expense. No acceptance or payment by RTA shall constitute a waiver of the foregoing, and nothing herein shall exclude or limit any warranties implied by law.

## 2.18 CORRECTION BY CONTRACTOR

After non-acceptance of the work, the Contractor shall begin implementing correction procedures within five (5) calendar days after receiving notification from the RTA. The RTA will make the site timely with Contractor's correction schedule. The Contractor shall bear all expense incurred to complete correction of the work after non-acceptance, and Contractor shall diligently implement correction procedures.

## 2.19 UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS

If completion of the work furnished under this contract should be unavoidably delayed, the RTA may extend the time for satisfaction of the Contractor's obligations pursuant thereto for a number of days determined by RTA to be excusable due to unavoidability. A delay is unavoidable only if the delay was not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during the Contractor's performance, and was not caused directly of substantially by acts, omissions, negligence or mistakes of the Contractor, the Contractor's suppliers or their agents and was substantial and in fact caused the Contractor to miss completion dates and could not adequately have been guarded against by contractual or legal means.

#### 2.20 NOTIFICATION OF DELAY

The Contractor shall notify the RTA as soon as the Contractor has, or should have, knowledge that an event has occurred or will occur which will delay progress or completion. Within five (5) days there from, the Contractor shall confirm such notice in writing furnishing as much detailed information as is available.

## 2.21 REQUESTS FOR EXTENSION

The Contractor agrees to supply, as soon as such data are available, any/all reasonable proof required by the RTA to make a decision relative to any request for extension. The RTA shall examine the request and any documents supplied by the Contractor, and RTA shall determine if the Contractor is entitled to an extension and the duration of such extension. The RTA shall notify the Contractor of this decision in writing. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Contractor shall not be entitled to damages or compensation, and shall not be reimbursed for losses on account of delays resulting from any cause under this provision.

## 2.22 ACCESS REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest agree to comply with all applicable requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42 U.S.C. sections 12101 et seq.; section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. section 794; section 16 of the Federal Transit Act, as amended, 49 U.S.C. app. section 1612; and the following regulations and any amendments thereto:

- (a) U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
- (b) U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
- (c) U.S. DOT regulations, "American With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 49 C.F.R. Part 38;
- (d) Department of Justice (DOJ) regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
- (e) DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
- (f) General Services Administration regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;
- (g) Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provision of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
- (h) Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and

(i) FTA regulations, "Transportation of Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609.

## 2.23 APPLICATION OF FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS

## (a) Federal Laws and Regulations

The Federal requirements (laws, regulations policies, and related administratively) contained in this contract may change (from time to time) after the date the contract has been executed. Any changes in federal requirements shall apply to this contract and be incorporated therein.

## (b) State or Territorial Law and Local Law

This contract shall be entered into in the State of Louisiana and shall be governed and/or construed in accordance with the laws and jurisprudence of the State of Louisiana, except to the extent that a Federal Statute or regulation preempts State or territorial law.

#### 2.24 CONTRACT PERIOD

THE TERM OF THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE SET FORTH IN THE CONTRACT AGREEMENT.

## 2.25 NO OBLIGATION BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

- (1) The Purchaser and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Purchaser, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.
- (2) The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

## 2.26 FEDERAL CHANGES

Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Agreement (Form FTA MA (2) dated October, 1995) between RTA and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

# 2.27 INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS

The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any RTA requests which would cause RTA to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions": <a href="https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance">https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance</a>

## 2.28 EXCLUSIONARY OR DISCRIMINATORY SPECIFICATIONS

Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by federal statute or regulations, the RTA will comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h) (2) by refraining from using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory specifications.

## 2.29 GEOGRAPHIC RESTRICTIONS

Except as expressly mandated, encouraged or permitted by FTA or Federal statute, RTA will refrain from using state or local geographic preferences.

## 2.30 PROMPT PAYMENT

Payment shall be made 30 days from date of approved and accepted invoice unless changed in the contract agreement. The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than five (5) days from the receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from the RTA. The prime contractor further agrees to return retainage payment to each subcontractor within five (5) days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed and accepted by RTA, and all lien delay's under applicable laws have expired. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above-referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the RTA. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

Identification of subcontractors: All prime contractors submitting offers in response to this Request For Proposals must provide the following information for All subcontractors whether the firm is identified as a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise or not. The required information is:

- (1) Firm Name
- (2) Firm Address
- (3) Firm's status as a DBE or non DBE
- (4) The age of the firm
- (5) The annual gross receipts of the firm

Additionally, each contract RTA enters into with a contractor (and each subcontract) the prime contractor signs with a subcontractor shall include the following assurance:

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the RTA deems appropriate.

Further, each contract RTA enters into with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime contractor signs with a subcontractor shall include the following assurance:

The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall make prompt payments for all satisfactory work performed under this agreement. The contractor shall within thirty (30) days of receipt of payment from RTA make all payments due subcontractors and suppliers. This requirement shall flow down to all levels including subcontractors making payments to sub subcontractors and suppliers, etc. Additionally, upon release of retainage(s) by RTA, Contractor shall in turn within thirty (30) days release retainage(s) it holds. The requirement for release of retainage(s) within thirty (30) days shall flow down to all subcontractors, etc. performing under this contract. Contractor or any of its subcontractors, etc. may not delay or postpone payments or release of retainage without prior RTA written approval. RTA may delay, or withhold up to twenty-five percent of Contractor's payments, retainage, etc. if there is evidence that Contractor is not complying with any provision hereunder. RTA may withhold monies due Contractor until such time as Contractor by its actions or assurances has, to RTA satisfaction, proven that it will or has complied with all the requirements hereunder.

## 2.31 CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor agrees that any and all information, in oral or written form, whether obtained from RTA, its agents or assigns, or other sources, or generated by Contractor pursuant to this contract shall not be used for any purpose other than fulfilling the requirements of this contract. Contractor further agrees to keep in absolute confidence all data relative to the business of RTA and RTA, their agents or assigns. No news release, including but not limited to photographs and film, public announcement, denial or confirmation of any part of the subject matter of any phase of any program hereunder shall be made by Contractor without written approval of RTA.

## 2.32 DISPUTES

Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the Director of Procurement. The decision of the Director of Procurement shall be final and conclusive unless within [seven (7)] days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the Vice President-RTA. In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor may be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Vice President-RTA shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide by the decision.

Performance During Dispute. Unless otherwise directed by RTA, Contractor shall continue performance under this contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages. Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others

for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury or damage.

Remedies. Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between the RTA and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State of Louisiana.

Rights and Remedies. The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the RTA, (its agents or assigns) or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

## 2.33 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Any documents, drawings, specifications, reports or data generated by the Contractor in connection with this project shall become the sole property of the RTA, subject to any rights asserted by FTA of the U.S. Department of Transportation. The Contractor may retain copies of such items for its files. The Contractor shall not release any documents, reports or data from this project without prior written permission from the RTA.

## 2.34 STATE AND LOCAL LAW DISCLAIMER

The use of many of the Clauses herein are not governed by federal law, many of the clauses contained herein contain FTA suggested language in certain instances these clauses may be affected by State Law.

## 2.35 PARTICIPANT INFORMATION FORM

All participants and their subcontractors are required to submit a completely executed, Participant Information Form available on <a href="http://www.norta.com">http://www.norta.com</a>.

## 2.36 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

The Non-Collusion Affidavit is a required submittal. The necessary form is available on <a href="http://www.norta.com">http://www.norta.com</a>.

## 2.37 REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY GENERAL PROVISIONS

The Regional Transit Authority's General Provisions shall apply to this solicitation and resulting contract.

## 2.38 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

It is the intent of the Regional Transit Authority (RTA) of New Orleans to create a level playing field on which Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) can compete fairly for opportunities. Accordingly, the RTA participates in the State-Local DBE Program of the City of New Orleans for all solicitations that are not funded by the US Department of Transportation.

DBE firms are firms which have 51% ownership and control by socially and/or economically disadvantaged individuals. For this solicitation, RTA will accept certification of DBE firms the following government agencies:

- Regional Transit Authority SBE Certification Program
- Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development Louisiana Unified Certification Program (LAUCP) http://www.laucp.org/ucp/
- City of New Orleans Office of Supplier Diversity -- SLDBE Certification Program www.nola.gov

In compliance with the RTA's DBE Policy to be eligible for award of a contract, the contractor/prime bidder MUST either:

- 1. Meet the DBE goal as advertised with meaningful DBE participation through subcontracts, joint ventures, or suppliers; OR
- 2. Demonstrate Good Faith Efforts to meet the DBE goal.

All firms participating on RTA projects, including SBE, SLDBE, DBE and non-DBE firms MUST be documented on the Contract Participation and DBE Commitment Form 1 – Schedule A. This form must be submitted by the prime/bidder, must include all information requested and must be signed by an authorized signatory.

For each participating SBE, SLDBE and DBE firm, a DBE Participation Questionnaire Form 2 – Schedule B MUST be included and signed by an authorized signatory of the firm. The purpose of this form is to confirm that the SBE, SLDBE or DBE firm has committed to participating on the project and that both parties agree to the scope of work and price as designated on the Contract Participation and S/DBE Commitment Form 1.

The SBE, SLDBE and DBE firms proposed on this form are binding. Any substitutions or removals of SBE, SLDBE or DBE firms listed on these forms after submission of the bid must be requested through the formal process of contract amendment and be approved by the DBE Liaison Officer. The Contractor shall, no later than three (3) days from the award of a contract, execute formal contracts, agreements and/or purchase orders with the SBE and DBE firms included on the Contract Participation and S/DBE Commitment Form 1.

If the Prime Bidder has not attained the DBE goal established for the project, Documentation of Good Faith Efforts Form 3 – Schedule C MUST be submitted. The completed form along with all required supporting documentation must be furnished.

Should a bidder fail to comply with the submission of complete and accurate DBE Compliance Forms demonstrating attainment of the DBE Goal or Good Faith Efforts to attain the DBE goal, the bid shall be deemed non-responsive.

The RTA shall have the authority to investigate allegations of discriminatory practices of bidder(s) who contract or seek to contract with the RTA.

Contracting With Small and Minority Businesses, Women's Business Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Area Firms

a) Any party to this Contract, when expending any Federal funds received under this Agreement, must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. These steps are required for the hiring of any subcontractors under this Contract.

- b) Affirmative steps must include:
  - 1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
  - 2. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
  - 3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises
  - 4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and
  - 5. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

Please direct all questions related to DBE compliance prior to submission of the solicitation to the RTA Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Liaison Officer.





## **UNIT PRICE FORM**

SOLICITATION NUMBER: 2025-026

DESCRIPTION: Non-Hazardous Waste Disposal

OPEN DATE: <u>July 24, 2025</u> DUE DATE: <u>August 22, 2025</u>

LINE	ITEM DESCRIPION	UOM	QTY	UNIT COST	TOTAL COST (annual rate)
1	Location: Canal Street Six (6) Dumpsters Size: 8Yds Pickup four (4) times a week: Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, and Friday	Per Week	52		
2	Location: ENO Garage – Two (2) Dumpsters Size: 8yds Pickup once a week	Per Week	52		
3	Location: ENO Administrative Building – One (1) Dumpster Size: 4yds Pickup once a week	Per Week	52		
4	Location: Carrolton – Two (2) Dumpsters Size: 8yds Pickup once a week	Per Week	52		
5	Dumpster Delivery Fee	Each	11		

	TOTAL BASE BID:	
VENDOR NAME:		
VENDOR ADDRESS:		
NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY:		
TITLE OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY:		
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY:		
DATE:		